
 

NEW HAMPSHIRE LOTTERY® COMMISSION 
14 INTEGRA DRIVE, CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301 

MINUTES OF COMMISSION MEETING 
OCTOBER 25, 2012  11:00 AM 

 
 PRESENT: 
 Debra Douglas, Chairman 
 Paul J. Holloway, Commissioner 
 Doug Scamman, Commissioner 
 Charles McIntyre, Executive Director  
 Diane Campbell, Administrative Assistant 
 Kassie Strong, Chief Accountant 
 Irene Nadeau, Games Manager 
 Robert Preston, Games Manager 
 Lynda Plante, Deputy Director 
 Georges Roy, Administrator III 
 Jim Bouley, Dennehy & Bouley 
 Maura McCann, Programs Information Officer 
 Len Mannino, Security Director 
 John Papile, Intralot 
 Kristen Pare, Intralot 
 Travis York, Griffin, York & Krause (GYK) 
 Rose Longo-White, Griffin, York & Krause 
    
 Chairman Douglas convened the Commission meeting at 11:00 a.m.  

 
1. ACCEPTANCE AND SIGNING OF PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

 
Commissioner Holloway made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Scamman, to 

approve the August commission meeting minutes, with one correction noted.  So voted, 
unanimous.   

 
2. FINANCIAL REPORT: 

 
Georges Roy, Administrator III, stated $5.8 million was transferred to Education for 

the estimated September, 2012 profit.  Mr. Roy provided a status report on the budget 
process.   

   
A discussion was held on the most updated weekly sales report.  Commissioner 

Holloway expressed his concern over the significant sales decrease for the Hot Lotto game, 
more noticeable over the past few months, and questioned the life span of the game.  Director 
McIntyre updated the Commission on a recent MUSL Hot Lotto group meeting.  It was 
approved at the meeting that the $1 million Hot Lotto minimum jackpot prize be tax-free. 
The Hot Lotto game change is tentatively scheduled for May, 2013.  Also discussed were the 
Lucky for Life sales, and the negative impact that the multiple jackpot wins within the first 
few months of the game’s launch have had on net profit.   



 

New Hampshire Lottery Commission     October 25, 2012 
Commission meeting minutes       Page two 

 
 
Maura McCann announced there was currently a total of $2.5 million in the expired, 

unclaimed Tri-State prize fund.  Ms. McCann stated the Tri-State Commission approved the 
use of $1 million in expired, unclaimed prize money for promotions in Fiscal Year 2013.  A 
total of $650,000 of the $1 million will be used for New Hampshire promotions.  Ms. 
McCann stated a portion of this funding was currently being used for the “Wins-Days” 
promotion, offering players a free Megabucks Plus ticket who purchase a Megabucks Plus 
ticket on Wednesdays between 5 to 7 pm. The “Wins-Day” promotion has been successful, 
with a 25% sales increase on Wednesdays.     

 
Commissioner Holloway inquired about the section in the Tri-State Commission 

meeting minutes stating “Maura McCann said the RNG (random number generator) had not 
been switched out for the draw room yet” and asked when it would be done.   Ms. McCann 
explained that a new updated RNG (random number generator) had been delivered to the 
Lottery for use as a back up for the lottery games’ winning numbers drawings, for Maine and 
Vermont’s retailer and player promotions, and NH Lottery Facebook promotions.  
Commissioner Holloway emphasized the importance of accountability and setting deadlines 
for action items brought up during the New Hampshire and Tri-State Commission meetings.  
Ms. McCann responded that she would arrange for the completion of installing the new RNG 
within the next two weeks and would report to the Commission when this was done.     

 
3. APPROVAL OF INTRALOT AMENDMENT: 
 

Director McIntyre presented an amendment to the Lottery’s existing on-line contract 
with Intralot regarding implementing Player Activated Displays Advertising Program to be 
presented to Governor and Council for approval.  Commissioner Holloway made a motion, 
seconded by Commissioner Scamman, to approve moving forward with the Intralot contract 
amendment.  So voted, unanimous.   

 
4. LUCKY FOR LIFE UPDATE: 

 
Director McIntyre stated that the Directors of the Lucky for Life group had been 

attending regular meetings and were discussing moderate reconstruction of the game to allow 
for a second tier “win for life” prize.  Research through Social Sphere is planned to analyze 
the effect this change would have on sales.  A conference call is scheduled tomorrow to 
approve the budget for the Lucky for Life game for the remainder of this year and next year.  
Ms. McCann updated the Commission on the new television advertising spot for release after 
November 7th.  Ms. McCann also stated an anniversary promotion is planned for March, 
2013 to celebrate the one year anniversary of the Lucky for Life game.  

 
 
 
 



 

New Hampshire Lottery Commission     October 25, 2012 
Commission meeting minutes       Page three 
 

5. INTRALOT REPORT: 
 
John Papile stated a software release was scheduled for this Sunday including four 

Fast Play games and numerous requested changes on the BOS system regarding the retailer 
bonus commission.  The Fast Play game is being expanded to offer multiple price points, two 
$1 games, one $2 game, and one $5 game, to go on sale October 28th.    

 
6. TRI-STATE REPORT: 

 
Chairman Douglas requested that Commissioner Holloway and Commissioner 

Scamman receive a report from Scientific Games and Intralot on suggested Tri-State 
Megabucks Plus revisions.  A brief discussion was held on the Tri-State advertising budget.    

 
Ms. McCann stated that at the most recent Tri-State meeting, Berry, Dunn, McNeil 

and Parker presented the FY 12 audit report.  The Tri-State gross revenues were slightly 
behind forecast by approximately 2% or $170,000.  Megabucks Plus sales were up 
approximately 2%; Daily numbers sales were down approximately 4%; Fast Play sales for 
New Hampshire and Vermont were down approximately 30%.  In the product development 
section of the meeting, both Scientific Games and Intralot presented their ideas for 
Megabucks Plus changes and it was indicated that the Megabucks Plus game was still a 
strong Tri-State game.  Alchemy3 presented a new concept for a Black Jack instant ticket 
game.   

 
The Tri-State Commission approved an amendment to Tri-State Policy No. 15 

relative to standards for sales promotions.  The Tri-State Commission voted to allocate $1 
million from expired, unclaimed prizes for the promotion of Tri-State products in Maine, 
New Hampshire and Vermont.  Also, updated Tri-State drawing procedures were approved 
by the Tri-State Commission.   

  
7. ADVERTISING: 

 
Ms. McCann stated the ad agency and the Lottery would be meeting tomorrow to 

discuss television and radio advertising to promote upcoming multiple price point Fast Play 
games.  Ms. McCann stated Director McIntyre had kicked off a NH Film Festival promotion 
with the NH Film Bureau to run from November 1, 2012 through December 27, 2012.  The 
promotion encourages filmmakers to submit a 30 second spot showing what winning the 
Lottery means to people in New Hampshire.   There will be a $5,000 top prize, a $2,000 
second place prize and a $1,000 third place prize to be awarded to the winners of the 
promotion. 

 
A subscription promotion is planned offering a 10% discount on subscription 

purchases for the month of December, 2012.  Expired, unclaimed prize money will be used to 
fund the holiday promotion running from December 16th through December 25th.   Ms.  



 

 
New Hampshire Lottery Commission     October 25, 2012 
Commission meeting minutes       Page four 

 
McCann announced that Kim Moore, from GYK, would be providing Public Relations 
assistance to the Lottery.   

 
Travis York, of GYK, provided a recap of initiatives and plans to occur between now 

and the end of the year, that were discussed at the September Lottery work session in Exeter.  
Chairman Douglas asked Mr. York about the status of the mobile application (app) for the 
Lottery.  Mr. York stated he had scoped the mobile app and it was on the agenda for 
tomorrow’s meeting.  Mr. York stated he anticipated the mobile app development process 
would take approximately four to six months.  Chairman Douglas asked at what stage we 
were at in the development process.  Mr. York responded, at the beginning stage in the 
development process.  Mr. York further explained that part of the reason that the longer 
development time was needed was that there was no shared platform for mobile apps.  Mr. 
York provided a technological explanation of the mobile app. and its benefits for enhancing 
player experience.  GYK will primarily use in-house resources for this project.  It was 
recommended that it would be most beneficial for the New Hampshire Lottery to own its 
own mobile app. and technology platform.  

 
Chairman Douglas requested that the Blackjack game that Alchemy 3 presented be 

provided to Commissioner Holloway and Commissioner Scamman.   Commissioner 
Holloway indicated a discussion on Replay was held recently during the work session in 
Exeter and asked for a follow-up on ways to maximize the Lottery’s revenue using the large 
Replay database.  Mr. York responded that the Replay website was due for an overhaul and a 
full audit was conducted.  Proposals have been made on ways to enhance the site.  Mr. York 
stated couponing programs, and cross sell and up sell programs had been implemented.  Rose 
Longo-White stated a meeting would be held next week to discuss a  
refer-a-ticket program.  Commissioner Holloway inquired if there was a way to generate 
revenue from the Replay site.  Mr. York reported that there were currently 187,000 active 
Replay members; approximately 15,000 players visit the Replay site per week to replay their 
tickets; and approximately 230,000 tickets are entered into Replay per week.  Mr. York 
stated currently the best way they can tie the database to sales was through coupons and the 
plans were to offer this more regularly.  A brief discussion was held on the possibility of 
monetizing the Replay database.  Mr. York expressed from a marketing and advertising 
standpoint, that loyalty and retention found through Replay were the most cost effective form 
of marketing.  

 
8. OTHER BUSINESS: 

 
Director McIntyre presented the “Oxford Impact Report” that was drafted to 

demonstrate the new Maine Oxford Casino’s negative impact on the Lottery’s sales.  The 
Commission asked that Director McIntyre make arrangements with the Governor’s office to 
provide this information to the Governor’s office and schedule a meeting with leadership 
after November 6th.  



 

 
New Hampshire Lottery Commission     October 25, 2012 
Commission meeting minutes       Page five 
 
 

Chairman Douglas made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Holloway, to move 
into executive session to discuss a personnel matter.  A roll call vote was taken.  
Commissioner Douglas stated “I”, Commissioner Scamman stated “I”, Commissioner 
Holloway stated “I”.  No commission action was taken during the executive session. 

 
 
 
           

       Debra Douglas, Chairman  
 
 
             
       Paul J. Holloway, Commissioner 
 
 

______________________________ 
Doug Scamman, Commissioner 
 

 
        
        


